

**Proposed Parking Amendments - Showing Changes:**

For Ordinance Review Subcommittee Meeting on 4/13/23

For Select Board Meeting on 5/9/23 (1<sup>st</sup> reading)

For Select Board Meeting on 5/23/23 (Public Hearing) - changes made after 1<sup>st</sup> reading to:  
W) Route 35 (Port Road) and Z) Summer Street

Formatted: Pattern: Clear

## Ordinances of the Town of Kennebunk

### 2-1 PROHIBITED PARKING

1.1 It shall be unlawful for the owner or operator of any vehicle to park, leave standing, either attended or unattended, any vehicle, commercially or privately owned, at any time, on any of the foregoing sections of ways and roads of the Municipality of Kennebunk:

#### (A) Beach Area:

a) **Bayberry Avenue:** On the even numbered side extending from Beach Avenue to Surf Lane and on the odd numbered side extending from Surf Lane to Peninsula Drive. (ADOPTED 10-10-1995)

b) **Boothby Road:** On the even numbered side from Beach Avenue to Woodland Ave or any paved portion of the roadway from Woodland Ave to Western Ave.

c) **Bruen Place:** On both sides.

d) **Clubhouse Drive:** On both sides up to number #15.

e) **Dutcher Lane:** On both sides

f) **Evergreen Avenue:** On the odd numbered side extending from Bayberry Avenue to Peninsula Drive.

g) **Fort Lane:** On both sides.

h) **Golf Club Drive:** On both sides.

i) **Great Hill Road:** On both sides except that parking is permitted 1) off the paved road in the Town right-of-way and 2) within fifty (50) feet of the paved dead end adjacent to the Mousam River. (06-21-2011)

j) **Harris Lane:** On the odd numbered side.

k) **Linden Ave:** On both sides.

Deleted: southerly

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Deleted:

Deleted: Pleasant Avenue

Deleted: northerly

Deleted: Pleasant Avenue

Deleted: to Peninsula

Deleted: westerly

Deleted: side

Deleted: tarred

Deleted: .

Deleted: c)

Deleted: the

Deleted: easterly

Deleted: odd numbered

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1", First line: 0"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.25", First line: 0"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1", First line: 0"

Deleted: d)

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.25", First line: 0"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0"

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.25", First line: 0"

Deleted: d

Deleted: northeasterly

Deleted: e

Deleted:

Formatted: Font: Bold

Deleted: f

Deleted: g) Grove Avenue: On the easterly side.¶

Deleted: h

Deleted: easterly

Deleted:

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1"

Deleted: i

Formatted: Font: Bold

**l) Marshview Avenue:** On the even numbered side from Bayberry Avenue to Surf Lane.

**m) Oak Street:** On both sides.

**n) Peninsula Drive:** On the even numbered side extending from Bayberry Avenue to Evergreen Avenue and on the odd numbered side from Beach Ave to Bayberry Ave.

**o) Railroad Avenue:** On the even numbered side.

**p) Ridge Avenue:** On the even numbered side.

**q) Strong Lane:** On both sides of the roadway.

**r) Surf Lane:** On the even numbered side #2 - #38 and as posted from Bayberry Ave. to Beach Ave.

**s) Valley Avenue:** On the odd numbered side and 200 feet from the intersection of Beach Ave on the even numbered side.

**t) Woodland Avenue:** On both sides of the roadway.

**B) Beach Avenue:** There will be no parking at Narragansett Point on the ocean side for a distance of 100 feet between the rock/gravel circular drive. There will be no parking from the last designated parking space across from The Beach House at #211 Beach Ave to the municipal parking lot at Mothers Beach which is the even numbered side of the street and from Lords Point Road to Great Hill Road on the even numbered side of the street.

**B-a) Beach Avenue:** From the intersection of Western Avenue (State Highway 9) to Sea Road / Great Hill Road intersection on the odd numbered side of the street. From the intersection of Western Avenue (State Highway 9) to 28 Beach Ave. (Franciscan Monastery) on the even numbered side of the street and from Gooch's Creek Bridge to the driveway at #84 Beach Ave. (10-26-1982; 07-10-2007; 06-21-2011)

**C) Berry Court:** On the odd numbered side from the intersection of Storer St. to the intersection of Lincoln St. and on the even numbered side for a distance of 130 feet starting from the intersection of Storer Street. (08-12-1986)

**D) Brown Street:** There will be no parking on either side of the roadway extending from York Street to Western Avenue except for: The designated area beginning at intersection of Western Avenue and the Brown Street "parking extension" (Mousam

- Deleted: southwesterly
- Deleted: Peninsula Drive
- Formatted: Font: Not Bold
- Deleted: j
- Deleted: k
- Deleted: southwesterly
- Deleted: Beach
- Deleted: .
- Deleted: l
- Deleted: westerly
- Deleted: m
- Deleted: westerly
- Deleted: n) Ridge Lane: On both sides.
- Formatted: Font: Bold
- Deleted: o
- Deleted: southwesterly
- Deleted: extending from Bayberry Avenue to Peninsula Drive and on the easterly side from Beach Avenue to Bayberry Avenue. ...
- Deleted: p
- Deleted: both
- Deleted: s
- Deleted: .
- Deleted: q
- Deleted: Any person, firm or corporation who violates 2-1.1 A, upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine as set by the Select Board's fee schedule together with costs to be used by the Municipality of Kennebunk. Any person accused of a violation may settle and compromise the claim against them for such illegal parking by paying the Municipality the fee as set by the Select Board's fee schedule; such payment may be made at the Police Station Municipal Office within 7 days of the time such alleged violation was committed. (09-12-1989; 06-12-02)¶
- Deleted: From a point at the easterly end
- Deleted: of the present parking space to Harris Road, (... [1])
- Deleted: Gooch's Creek Bridge
- Deleted: southerly
- Deleted: northerly
- Deleted: .
- Deleted: ¶ (... [2])
- Deleted: southerly
- Deleted: side
- Deleted: with
- Deleted: extending southwesterly 118'.
- Deleted: From Main Street a distance of 50' on either s (... [3])
- Deleted: .
- Deleted: Friend

River side) for a distance of 650 feet and on the Wells side of Brown Street for a distance of 150 from the Western Avenue intersection.

**E) Chase Hill Road:** On both sides of the street and on any paved Town surface. (1-11-2011; 06-21-2011)

**F) Dane Street:** No parking on either side except for the two designated parking locations designed and lined for parking.

**G) Day Street:** On both sides of Day Street from the intersection of Swan Street to intersection of Hall Street except for the designated parking spaces in front of 12 Day Street. (02-14-1989)

**H) Elm Street:** From Green Street to Dane Street on either side of the street. (06-29-1956)

**I) Fletcher Street:** No parking on either sides from Main Street to the turnpike bridge.

**J) Friend Street:** From High Street to Brown Street on either side of the street. (03-03-1966)

**K) Garden Street:** On both side for a distance extending 180 ft. from the Main St. intersection.

**L) Green Street:** No parking except in designated parking stalls. (10-14-2014)

**M) Grove Street:** On both sides of the roadway.

**N) High Street** No parking on both sides from York Street to Cat Mousam Road except for the designated parking spaces in front of 7 & 9 High Street and those in front of 4 & 6 High Street.

**O) Lords Point Road:** No parking except in designated parking stalls. (09-14-1982)

**P) Main Street:** No parking except in designated parking stalls. (06-29-1956; 02-17-1970)

**Q) Park Street:** From the intersection of Dane Street for a distance of 50' on the odd numbered side (Park Street Playground). (07-26-1983)

**Q-a) Park Street:** On the even numbered side extending from its intersection with Grove Street to the Summer Street intersection. (10-09-1990)

- Deleted: (06-29-1956)
- Deleted: pull off
- Formatted: Font: Bold
- Deleted: From Main Street to Park Street on the southerly (Park Street Playground) side. From Main Street for a distance of thirty (30) feet on the northerly side. (06-29-1956; 07-26-1983; 06-21-2011)...
- Deleted: the easterly
- Deleted:
- Deleted: pull off
- Deleted: .
- Deleted: From Summer Street to Green
- Deleted: F
- Deleted: for a distance of 25' on the southwesterly (Civil War Monument) side, and from Main Street for a distance of 20' on the northeasterly (Kennebunk Library) side. (02-17-1970) to
- Deleted: York
- Deleted: (US Route 1)
- Deleted: the southerly side
- Deleted: 50'
- Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"
- Deleted: On both sides within 20' of the nearest line of any crosswalk, marked or unmarked, and/or within 20' of the nearest line of all street intersections, except where prohibited for a greater distance. (08-12-1986)
- Deleted: From within 40' of Main Street (Portland Road) on the northeasterly (Town Hall) side, or beyond the Green Street entrance to the Town Hall. From and from Main Street to a point 129' 210 feet along Green Street on the southwest (... [4])
- Deleted: Handicapped Parking: That two handicapped (... [5])
- Deleted: From Main Street to first residential driveway (... [6])
- Deleted: No parking both sides.
- Deleted: ¶
- Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"
- Deleted: :
- Deleted: F
- Deleted: Main
- Deleted: a distance of 50' on the right hand side. (06-2 (... [7])
- Deleted: From a point 66' southwesterly of CMP pole # (... [8])
- Deleted: Any person, firm or corporation who violates (... [9])
- Deleted: (US Route 1) (Mousam River Bridge)
- Deleted: From Friend
- Deleted: from Brown
- Deleted:
- Deleted: Street to Water Street on the odd numbered (... [10])
- Deleted: southerly on the westerly
- Deleted: northwesterly
- Deleted: Dane

**R) Parsons Beach Road:** No parking on both sides from the intersection of State Highway 9 (Western Ave.) to the Stoney River Bridge. After the Stoney River Bridge parking is only allowed in the designated marked locations near the end of the paved roadway on the Mousam River side.

**S) Parsons Street:** On both sides of the street starting at Bourne Street going towards Garden Street. From the Mechanic Street intersection to Bourne Street on the odd numbered side of the street. (08-12-1986)

**T) Pleasant Street:** On both sides of the roadway. (10-09-1990)

**U) Plummer Lane:** On both sides of Plummer Lane beginning at the intersection of Summer Street to the driveway of #6. On the odd numbered side of the street for the entire length of the street. (06-23-1992)

**V) Post Office Square:** On both sides of the roadway. (05-24-11)

**W) Route 35 (Port Road):** No parking except in designated parking stalls.

**X) Route 99:** From the town boundary of Sanford and Kennebunk for a distance of 2.7 miles on either side. (09-02-1982)

**Y) Storer Street:** On both sides of the roadway. (09-25-2007)

**Z) Summer Street:** No parking on Summer Street from Main Street (Rt. 1) to the Evergreen Cemetery (Port Road) except for the following locations: 1. In front of Bibber's Funeral #67 (sidewalk side). 2. In front of #157 (The Landing Store)

**AA) Thompson Road.** On both sides from its intersection with the Alfred Road to Patterson Drive and from the circular driveway of the Middle School to Alewife Road on the even numbered side of the roadway.

**BB) Western Avenue -- Lower Village Parking Ordinance:** On pavement except in designated parking stalls.

**BB 1) Western Avenue.** From Port Road (Coopers Corner) on the odd numbered side for a distance of 240 feet and no parking on the paved traveled portion to Captain

- Deleted:** From
- Deleted:**
- Formatted:** Font: Not Bold
- Deleted:** to a point 415' north of
- Deleted:**
- Deleted:** on either side. (06-21-1976) ... [11]
- Deleted:**
- Deleted:** southerly end of Parsons Street within 20' of the crosswalk which runs parallel to Garden St...
- Deleted:** On the
- Deleted:** northerly
- Deleted:** odd numbered side for the entirety of the street. From Main Street a distance of one-hundred (100) 300 feet on the southerly even numbered side. (11-27-1979; 06-21-2011) ... [12]
- Deleted:** Street Lane: On both sides the northerly side ... [12]
- Deleted:** From the intersection of Route 9 (Western Ave.) for a distance of 150' 160 feet on the odd numbered side to #181 (Pedro's) and continuing on the odd numbered side from School House Lane to the intersection of Old Port Road and Summer Street. From the intersection of Western Ave on the even numbered side for a distance of 155 feet to # 184 and from #182 Port Road to #176 for a distance of 176 feet. From the intersection of Christensen Lane to the intersection of Old Port Road and Summer Street.westerly on both sides. (10-26-1982)
- Deleted:**
- Deleted:** Beginning 150' westerly from the intersection of Rt. 9 to a point 525' westerly from the intersection of Rt. 9 ... [13]
- Deleted:** From Port View Road (so called) to Utility Pole ... [14]
- Formatted:** Indent: Left: 0"
- Deleted:** From Utility Pole #J11 to Port View Road (so called) ... [15]
- Deleted:** On the Northeast side of the street,
- Deleted:** On both sides of the roadway On the odd numbered side ... [16]
- Deleted:** Sayward Street, unpaved areas of the Town ... [17]
- Formatted:** ... [18]
- Deleted:** In front of 14 Summer Street starting 10 ft. from ... [19]
- Deleted:** On the even numbered side #20 through # 5 ... [20]
- Deleted:** On the northern side beginning at the western ... [21]
- Deleted:** Z-A) Summer Street: On the southern
- Deleted:** side beginning at the Green St. intersection ... [22]
- Formatted:** Strikethrough
- Deleted:** One "No Parking" sign shall be placed on the ... [23]
- Deleted:** ¶ ... [24]
- Deleted:** The beginning point shall be the west side of ... [25]
- Deleted:** ¶ ... [26]
- Deleted:** Patterson Drive and from the circular driveway ... [27]
- Deleted:** Opposite Rotary Park
- Deleted:** the northerly odd numbered side of Western ... [28]

Sawyer Lane. No parking on the even numbered side of the traveled portion of the roadway from Beach Ave (Coopers Corner) to Boothby Road.

**CC) Western Avenue:** On both side of Route 9 (Western Ave) from the Wells town line to the Cat Mousam River Bridge,

**DD) Winter Street:** On both sides. (06-21-2011)

All other areas shall be marked with signage or painted curbing.

Within twenty (20) feet of all intersections with roads, including fire lanes and private roads. Distance shall be measured from the projected edge of the paved or gravel road surface on each side of the intersecting road. (06-21-2011)

Within ten (10) feet of all driveway entrances and directly across the roadway from any driveway entrance and within 10 feet of any marked crosswalk, (06-21-2011)

**1.2** The fact that an automobile, which is illegally parked, is registered in the name of the person shall be considered prima facie proof that such person was in control of the automobile at the time of such parking. (01-26-1971)

**1.3** Any person, firm, or corporation who violates any provision of Section 2-1 upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine as set by the Select Board's fee schedule together with costs to be used by the Municipality of Kennebunk. (01-26-1971; 06-12-02)

**1.4** Any person accused of a violation may settle and compromise the claim against him or her for such illegal parking by paying the Municipality the fee as set by the Select Board's fee schedule; such payment may be made at the Town Hall within 7 days of the time such alleged offense was committed. (01-26-1971; 06-12-02)

**1.5** Fees shall be shown on a fee schedule set by vote of the Select Board each year, after notice and hearing. (06-12-02)

**1.6** Special Events. The Town Manager or designee may declare a temporary no-parking zone or allow for temporary parking in a previously designated no-parking zone to accommodate special events approved by the Select Board, including but not limited to parades, special sporting events, public concerts, and fireworks displays. Such designation shall be marked with a placard or similar temporary signage in the affected area(s). For any such temporary parking re-designation to last more than twenty-four (24) hours, written notice shall also be provided to the abutting property owners; for any such temporary parking re-designation to last twenty-four (24) hours or less, notice shall also be posted on the Town's website. (06-21-2011)

**Deleted:** The fact that an automobile, which is illegally parked, is registered in the name of the person shall be considered prima facie proof that such person was in control of the automobile at the time of the parking.¶

¶ Any person, firm or corporation who violates any provision of this ordinance, shall, upon conviction, be punished by a fine as set by the Select Board's fee schedule together with costs to be used by the Municipality of Kennebunk. (6-12-02)¶

¶ Any person accused of a violation may settle and compromise the claim against him or her for such illegal parking by paying the Municipality the fee as set by the Select Board's fee schedule; such payment may be made at the Police Station Municipal Office within 7 days of the time such alleged offense was committed. (10-26-1982; 06-12-02)¶

**Deleted:** /Parsons Beach

**Deleted:** the south

**Deleted:** .

**Deleted:** Parsons Beach intersection

**Deleted:**

**Deleted:** extending 15' easterly.¶

¶ On the south side of Route 9 Western Ave., from a point 160' east of the Parsons Beach Road intersection extending 90' easterly.¶

**Deleted:** On the south side of Route 9 Wells Road, from Parsons Beach Road intersection, extending 25' westerly.¶

¶ On the north side of Western Ave., from the westerly most Brown St. intersection extending to the easterly most Brown St. intersection. (09-27-1983)

**Deleted:** .

**Deleted:** Police Station

**Deleted:**

**Deleted:** Municipal Office

**Formatted:** Not Highlight

- 1.7 [Left blank intentionally]
- 1.8 [Left blank intentionally]
- 1.9 [Left blank intentionally]

**1.10 Amendment Process.** Effective July 1, 2007, exclusive authority for all amendments to Section 2-1, 2-2, and 2-3 of the Roadways and Traffic Ordinance, including repealing or totally revising the same, including fines and penalties, shall be vested in the municipal officers; provided, however, any such changes or amendments shall be preceded by notice in a newspaper of general circulation in town at least seven (7) days in advance of a public hearing to be held by the municipal officers on the same.

**Dates of passage and amendment occur after each roadway.**